

Consolidation of the Canada of the French Ocean Exhibits

- 1 From Guesen to Rivty 23 8. 60. Relaying proposals for
exhibiting. Letter for Tchita from myltling islands
- 2 Ditto ²⁸³⁷ 31. 11. 62 ^{no. 600.} Relaying news re Grand Homet, Sepiete
Merrin and Barbara Grey
- 3 Ditto. Duplicate
- x 4. Schedule of volumes re Sepiete Merrin - 2 p.
25 volumes
- 5 Ditto 603, 4. 12. 62. Catalogue of Sepiete Merrin affair.
- 6 Duplicate
- 7 2 volumes (1) Itinerary of Antonio Goona (2) Letter on Byrd's
family excerpts for letters for Guesen.
- 8 Ditto 617 31. 12. 62. Enquiry into the with de Lescage
& C. C. Pacific fleet re Merrin action in Fr. Ocean.
- 9 Ditto 619 31. 12. 62. Letter of Lotonde - Tréville in
reply Nicolas A. de. Whaley.
10. Duplicate
- 11 Duplicate

12 106 3.3.63 Re Serpente Noira & Necesses

List of despatches given at end.

13 ¹⁰⁷
~~117~~ 3.3.63 Necesses a de holiday.

x 14 108 3.3.63 Refut of Lotande - Ténelle

Interrogation of 3 people re Empresa utitur in Anguilla.
Cum Dommum Also re Genes for Refu.

15. Difficulté

16. Serpente Noira Dossier No. 3.

17 enclommes.

Refut of Technical Enquiry held at Mangrove.

Dated at Papeete 3.3.63.

Procureur Général Esrol.

17. 109 4.3.63 Family letters to de Lersays &
the C in C Pacific

Letter to de Lersays re Entom, Gen, etc. dated 4.3.63.

E.G. de la Richèrie

Also to de Lersays 31.1.63 re Necesses

Tech Archival 4.3.63 on letter

18 Duplicate

19 131 27.3.63 Act result of Paris despatch
of 14.1.63 re Guernsey letter about Penrhyn Island
resist.

20 Duplicate.

X 21. 142. 30.3.63 - Action of Officer Sir John
Lettin & references allowed to go. People of one
district - advised of their part - hopes will express opinions
of how action in Fr. Ocean is regarded.

Letter to Capt^{no 30} 28.3.63 pretty h^o to go but
returning SM until orders arrive for Paris.

22. Duplicate.

X 23. 144. 30.3.63. Re Coron
Bad state of ship submitted sale.

SMH 16.4.63 Precedence re Transfers

619 31.12.62 L-T left 25.11.62

Captured M at Nantes 3.12.62 - coined a Pennin play. 161 on board
abstract of following papers and the free distribution of clothing.

In her arrival I examined the rules and Article 8 of the Code of the
Lords of 6 generale, year VIII, to see if she should be classed as
a pirate & therefore declared a prize. Everything was too vague, I
did not see the court but myself. In the end decided the affair should
be put before the Protectorate Courts.

Given reasons why he decided not to treat her as a pirate but to
charge them responsible for bringing news Part. Law. Legation's note
forward

L-T left 26.12.62 for England re SM enquiry.

Giving all details re MT to Director affair to who took care of Pennin cases
and for record.

To be tried under:-

- (1) Anticipation of Articles 1 & 2 of the Decree of 6.9.18950 (?)
- (2) " " " 7 of the " of 11.8.62
- (3) Cases a anticipated under Article 265-268 & 341 & 405 of the
Netherlands Penal Code

✓ 106 3.3.63 The evidence of the Public Prosecutor tends to
indicate the capture & subsequent seizure of the SM before the criminal tribunal
But I am advised that ^{into} ~~gangs~~ related to the SM do not fall within the jurisdiction
of the Protectorate tribunals as clearly as those of the Mavedes.
∴ does not propose to proceed against SM but will keep the ship until he hears the
decision of the defendant. The fact that the SM is one of the fleet engaged
in these extraordinary proceedings seems to justify this presentation. No case is detected
in favor of SM. This letter with No. 600 28.11.62; 603 4.12.62;
619 31.12.62 reflects the account of the action re SM.

✓ 107 3.3.63 Letters on Mavedes ~~are~~ continue on file: -
✓ 600 28.11.62; ✓ 603 4.12.62; ✓ 617 31.12.62
619 31.12.62; 74 31.1.63.

MT 14.3.63:45 Trial commenced 9.3.63 Estrela 29.6.63.

Charged with having contravened Local Decrees of 6.9.50 and 11.8.62
before the Criminal Tribunal of the Society Islands and its dependencies.

Juan Bautista Uruburu, captain of the Peruvian brig Mavedes a de Whaley.
Charles Grandet, a French merchant resident in the Tuamotu Islands, found on board.
Beron Lee Kraft, embarked as pilot and interpreter.

Charged under Articles 265-268 and 341 of the Penal Code and the Local Decrees of
6.9.50 and 11.8.62

with having committed the crime of 'sequestration' against 152 Tuamotu Islanders.

Océanie Carton 42 / B18. / Peru

Archives Nationales Section Outre-mer
Océanie B18

Correspondence of the Commander of the
French Establishments in Oceania.

To the Minister of the Navy

+ the colonies -

23.8.62

Previous correspondence.

Requests approval for existing recruitment
of Tongarevan labour, + for others
to follow

30.11.62

No. 600

news from

S. W coast of America.

Disembarked at Callao 280 natives

8 or 10 ships (speculators) aimed to recruit
a fever of speculation

6th Barbara Gomez + Serpiente Maema 7th
arrived at Tahiti.

6th General Hoenet

In the absence of any treaty or convention
France U.S.A. or Peru for the suppression
of the trade or any similar activity
nothing could be done except to have a
General Surveillance ordered.

Inspected the B.C. Capt. & one crew
were not on the manifest. Insufficient
irregularities not sufficient to hold the
ship & it was ordered to leave.

S.M. looked like slave ship according
to local rumour. Events on Mangareva.
meeting of Council & he forbade the
ship to go. More serious fear emerged
that there had been an uprising of
the natives because of attempted
kidnapping. (made them question the
reason for stopping at Mangareva)

archipelago with
No flag & no name on the middle of the
by Geomet. ~~24th~~ 24th

In London
24th

wife &

A French Ship arrived with above news.
Sent off La. i. T. with this news. Queen's
son went on ship.
Courier left 5th Dec.

Mastered Chilean ship Marshall Sibonius 29th Nov. 3/2
MATTHIAS SALVINIUS

Protest of Capt. of S.M.

Requests return of 2 men (The Easter Islanders)
Not on muster roll & ∴ irregular.

13.11.62

Pao escapes from police swam out to S.M.
Capt. not on board so warrant not delivered.

15.11.62

Interviewing 2 men from Easter Island.
Several went on board. Ship moved at
two places - Hangatie & Anakena
The two restrained on board but without
violence until island out of sight. Showed
despair were told ship going to Tahiti
to get things off for wife & children before
returning to Easter. Fight at Gambiers
& Capt. wounded in thigh.

~~Cepoaoa~~

CEPOAOA

wife & 3 children

CEMANU

" 2 "

So one swam back to return home

5 days from Easter to Gambiers.

D^r Smith on S.M. went ashore without any ill intent - also Capt. & supercargo & Laval etc incited a revolution & Capt & supercargo were wounded.

16.11.62 Marmie Capt reporting

Martinez, supercargo (not on muster roll) left Callao appropriated from the Amijunqui intending to go to China but passing near E. I they bartered with natives & did not take any by force, were not armed & natives stayed on board voluntarily?

28-10-62 at Mangareva - Canoe came alongside with Rignon asking for D^r to visit Queen - 3 went ashore - $\frac{1}{2}$ hr later they went to palace & were surrounded by natives - extraordinary that cap. M was disarmed - also stole D's knife - (simple precaution) wounded / Piere Lavelle's fault (Saco spear wound) "King of the country - provisions." Left M about 1 pm - only wanted water & it allowed would not have gone to Tahiti

Laval asked for their papers - Ask for
detailed inquiry on events -
Region + nation.

5 days from E.I. to Tongara
to be report to ^{the} Imperial Commissioner
Chief of Judicial Service
to The ^{For} Commissioner of the Administrative
Council.

Memorandum 24-11-62

Easter Islanders were taken by deceit
or force + imprisoned ^{shut up in} in the hold of
the S.M. hands tied whilst on deck for a
took them out during the night ^{bathe?} Then
hauled them back on board + imprisoned them.
Suspicious appearance of ship led you to
have an inspection of the ship to discover
what truth there was in rumours. Raised
first act maritime official sent on board to
check roll of crew. revealed several crew
members. Saco not on roll. Introduced as
super cargo - ~~no~~ false under false name. Then
two natives found - not listed. Harbour master
noticed S.M. divided up to 104 "conquettes"

2 cauldrons in kitchen.

2 natives taken ashore for interrogation.
Fight in Gambies 1 woman killed by
gunshot from Capt. & 1 crew wounded.
Interpreter not sufficiently knowledgeable
of E. I. language - so other details of
ship were investigated.

Documents listed.

E. Islanders to remain at Tahiti.
Recommends inquiry in Gambies, Pohnu
authorities informed of suspicious
activities. should take responsible action.

Adelante boat crew from Marquesas
two undesired. take on 5 crew.

4 months @ 8 peakers a month

24.11.62

Letter saying he had heard about
slave ships in Tuamotus.

4-12.62 sent. Telling letter No. 600

Revealing departure of S.M.

~~1-12-62~~ Manuelita S.M. Gambier's.

2 Stood off for 2 days -

Pilot went on board & was asked how many people ashore & were there any search - Capt. said making scientific journey voyage in Polynesia -

M^s Guilloux & 6 mangaroas noticed ship equipped for slaving reported -
Maun & Agim went on board & said all o.k.
P. spoke secretly with Capt. S.C. the Capt asked to change anchorage near open sea -

1/4 ships left Callao during last few months & travelled all through Polynesia to natives with the aim of giving enormous benefits from the

✓ 21-12-62 Gov. Taluti to Charge of Affairs at Callao about Mercedes

31-12-62

News from La T. T. captured boat at
Marctua described by natives.

Peruvian flag - Mercedes.

La T. T. alongside - 161 natives aboard
~~had~~ attracted by promises of pretty
etc. . . . Escorted to Tahiti. Refers
to law so that ship could be considered a
pirate. ~~Regret~~

Decided to bring before court.

31/12/62 3.3.63 S.M. Capt. & Scargo.

Not to be brought to trial.

—— // —— // ——

M.S. brought news from the Gambies which
confermed suspicious of the S.M.

12-11-62

S.M. appeal.

Boarded S.M. ~~discovered~~

Capt. presented to them 2 natives
of Anakena (Pao) Hanake (Oumamu)

The tween decks were divided into
cabins, ~~between these were a common deck~~
for 20 ft ⁱⁿ narrow corridors

2 enormous cauldrons?

Behind main mast a barrier - 2 doors one
in front, one at the back.

Oumamu. + Pao - Easter Islanders?

Capt. invited them to go on board. would have
swum + then were tied by their feet.
They declared by gestures that they had
not had enough to eat + that their clothing
was given them by the capt. They did not
wish to stay on board but on Tahiti unless
they could return home.
Mangalevan interpreter could understand only a little.

L.T. has seized M. & there were
161 natives from your islands on
board. Those Indians had been

attracted by the most fallacious
promises & by the free distribution of a
few pieces of clothing. On the eve

of the M in Tahiti Pap. the M
having been led into Pap by
small detachment
a few men from the H.T.

Upon this ~~case~~ of the M. I had
I have proceeded with the
instruction following the rules
under ^{article 8 of} the ^{compuls} decree of the 6th

Genéral in the year 8, in order
to know if this res. could be
condemned as a pirate & upon

this declared as a good ^{catch} ~~prize~~.

This prosecution entrusted to Mr
the Comm. & ^{available} the officers of the Comm
& has been carried

& I regret to have to tell YE the
report of your officer is insignificant

the only officer of the Comm who was available

∴ I have only taken advice with myself.

After having agreed with the Public Pro^s in charge & the chief of the Judiciary, I have decided that this affair should be brought before the Protect Tribunals.

Here are the reasons behind my decision.

Following the acts which are current to believe the declaration of good prize which must precede the judging of the act of piracy must be pronounced in Paris. By the Imp Council which decides on captures (prizes).

It is necessary to wait for a reply from YE before acting & the people accused of piracy be led to Beest.

How slow & how obscure because of such distances

In my personal opinion & in the view
of the Chief of the Judiciary Service
the vessel M- that I have no
doubt ~~the~~ right to have arrested
when it had been caught in
the T. islands waters. Having
allegedly kidnapped through
beachery which are not fully
known, 16 natives, Protect. subjects,
cannot be only with difficulty
considered as an active pirate
if I can so express myself.

The ~~board~~^{board} of our country being
competent to judge actions contrary
to the laws, of the kind committed
by the M I am convinced that
they must be asked to express,
which have been ^{thought out} carried to some
extent on Protect. subjects
The accusation against the M
can be summarised to 3 main
points

Arrangement of Correspondence

- (1) Governor, Tahiti, to Minister for Navy & Colonies
- (2) Minister for Navy & Colonies to Governor, Tahiti
- (3) Minister for F.A. to Minister for Colonies
- (4) Minister for Colonies to Minister for F.A.

Gov. to de Lencastre 31.5.63, enc. in Gov. to Winter, No. 265, 31.5.63

At the school of Mangochi when the remainder an English missionary, of Kell, 5 notes
among them the son of the principal chief, have been kidnapped by tracking
at the school of Uten 6 notes have been kidnapped in the same way. Among them
is also the son of the principal chief

At this school, where people appear very friendly disposed towards France, the
chief has asked me to get back his son & has requested the L.T. to take
2 notes & has then tele. to Pem, if necessary, to remove their capture, instead of an
ambushade.

Gov. to Winter, No. 296, 29.6.63

Gen. to de Lasseps

4.12.62

31.12.62.

31.1.63

4.3.63

31.3.63

3.5.63 ✓

31.5.63 ✓

29.6.63 ✓

Ref'n 26

Gen. to de Lasseps 31.5.63 says L-T visited Gado - at Pangra 5 lakes, incl. on of chief. At Atini 6 lakes, incl on of principal chief. 2 Uteimo Bay set to try & get his son back. Can do nothing by themselves but can do a lot under protection of de L. * On 11.5.63 he rec'd reply from Col. Bonnet to his 1st letter, of 4.12.62.

Gen. to de L. 3.5.63 Says he arrives with reference replies to the numerous letters which he had sent him.

Gen. to de L. 29.6.63. On 14.6.63 rec'd de L's letters of 10.4.63 & 8.5.63 (including the first replies) & reads delighted to hear of extra bay take: 'allow me the pleasure of seeing the course of our relations in your hands'.

* referring to Gen's letters of 4.12.62, 31.12.62, 31.1.63 & 4.3.63

Gen. to the Navy, No. 450, 23.9.63.

If I make the previous observation it is because de L in Lima has thought that in these circumstances I had strayed away from the firmness of my first declaration against the refusal aggressions of the Peruvians, & that the C-d'A has seen me the honor to tell that while thanking me for the feeling of modesty which has led me to act in this way de L has believed that it would be favorable to our political relations with Peru to deplore this refusal and the system of indulgence that I have adopted towards the captain & the supercargo of the S-M.

I cannot answer anything about that. I am of my that in Tahiti I don't know what to do in the situation in Lima because I only know it in a very general manner. I do not believe either that in that situation I have shown any indulgence in this affair which are called immigration & which in reality involve ^a slave trade of the most kind. But I do seek to stray away from the circle of my responsibilities while guiding myself constantly on this principle that while I see the honor to administer these 97 islands I must avoid any cause of external conflicts & facilitate as much as possible Y.E.'s task of giving a definite solution on delicate and delicate matters.

11

No 99 1.5.63 to write about all the above concerns
re the note.

Decided to let 9 eyes go. Sofreya Ma de Garride
is not busy in education or intelligence.

Wish to find the ship was in the name of Ecuador and allow
to do with the Peruvian business.

The note turn up for E1, Papa with 2 E10 also we find.

Def. Voltaire. Conyers colony of Mount & colts of Low
no doubt need often to ride Teliki especially as was found to
wholen for as riding tree and water.

After now here & now has decided to check & be thorough
& eyes found. Sy My we decided by over. Doubtful how
much Grant can interfere.. Wish write to wonder how and he has
been used to live on himself in these difficult situations. Since
4.12.62 when he first wrote to Lessons and advice has received no reply
to guide and reassure him. Grant to write direct to George
myself of colts, read office & reference dated May 1863.

Notes and 11 April leaving Chilean coast was kept by Pennon
 commanded by José Antonio Bascaglia. Left Valparaiso 26.2.63
 with a breeze delivered by the Pennon local in Valparaiso requiring it to
 call at Callao after visiting Polynesia. Among the crew for such a
 great distance it says not a word but it is difficult to believe that
 that the crew was ignorant of the instructions of the owner the same José -

Gregorio Bascaglia. 18 men belong to 10 nations :-

- ✓ Colombia 1 German 2 Dutch 1 English 3 Portuguese 5
- Chilean 2 Spanish 1 de Danille 2 de Betonia 1

trough to obtain a cargo of coconut oil at Tahiti. 2 days out
 after used to desert I believe. Intend to be debarked at first landfall.

Learned in Chile that all floggers of Chile or subjects of Chile
 of 10 years in the galleys.

12 or 13 March off E.I. - 3 days off island, Islanders hostile - of a few
 use a kind of club to return ashore. Unions & tinas distributed as presents
 by captain to tempt large numbers on board. After of José Antonio case
 in food for night after about forty (and) but J.C. sent a slave and
 butted up the natives - gunfire heard directed at I believe. 2 only
 seemed to want to stay on the Notes. 14 63 and Rafa.

Not done by choice by Pennon slaves as indicated on E.I. Have the want
 of water being taken by the ship led the crew to say and when the crew

Grew came on board they refused to abandon the ship
after winding the :-

State of the ship

Center's involvement by the crew being criminal proceedings

Danger for the Refers (cf. the Gra)

The after decided to bring the ship to Tchite

It seems probable that if he had stayed long the Refers would have tried
a second attempt and in that case the crew would have assisted them
after but chiefly under the opinion and Recommendation of

Advice is from the Report on the Permit being with by the Public
Prosecutor's office dated 29.4.63.

No. 255, 255.63 to Ministry

Cora and cargo sold on 5th May. Amount placed with
Colonial Treasurer Sold for 23,436.50

Enc. Information to Commissioner of Police 21.4.63. Cora had got 23 ✓

E.I. 12. The law in days of leaving a vessel. Dealt by after

Pat after to Ordination 13.4.63. Refused detention of Cora on

being declared by captain and crew but 2
I am not to be a Grand & some business.

Details determined.

CORRECT.
on list of references.

Exc in Gov. to Ministry No. 265, 31.5.63.
To Leroups ~~31.3.63.~~ 31.5.63

Mount at Pennin Quat. André A. de. Whely comes.

Can add for 23,430.50 francs.

Dunde left for Ngusara & Tegenera 6 April

Off. of J.W. admits that descriptions in notes to Sava same
as in French Prot. ||| Lotoko Teille has visited Cook to
& refers J.W. report. Rev. Gill writes after of Kiya's son.

6 notes of Atini leader & chief asked Lotoko T. to take
2 Atinias to go to Para to reclaim expatriates. Atinias often
will depart to France. will go by courrier Aorai to one of
Leroups with Ngusara interpreter. With Leroups' help my retire Atinias,
& also Ngusara. Send 6 take for Atini. Ngusara 5

~~Not to be met with line of results through G.B.~~

Pedro to Lemos 4.3.63 via goddard and pilot questioned gift of Espera island in Towhee Bay

he refused to reply because he did not recognize Fred's authority as the Emperor.

He despite this insolent ~~far~~ far ouade ouade he left at once & only just in time because the islanders were about to accept the Espera side unless for the present and take her to Papeete.

^{golettee-hoste}
Diana & Lora going to Aorai - give 300 francs to help them when the Swiss work Local
Also only Haki (HOKI) a Tongan who speaks French & English

Pedro to de Lemos 30.3.63. whaling trade Sepiete murua Peudes near bay not to

Velfenauer gift of luna & cook dual a bank. Winds to refute luna Coru islands back to Papa -
and 2 E.I.s exc S-M to E1 - near speck Tahiti will long to be indented and would make excellent
intimates to ascertain what happened this day Dec and etc.

Pedro in Emperor states that gift of Guazog set a boat ashore at Dominique but the attitudes of the natives seemed that they were little disposed to enter into relations - no doubt that was the reason why the gift came to Papeete.
see details re Guazog's.

Sepete Affaire du Sepete Namoi

Dossier No. 3

also 17 other and widely spread of



Marie Eudoxie Reyst. and also the notice of

16 interests taken by the Premier Hotel at Nyereva

Final report of P1 consider that whether 2 E 1's were being kept on hand as passives to become recruits for Pan 6 that they were held on being held on hand by force.

Consider that Nkomo & Sosa forced a company to violate the proprieties et les personnes en passant ces deniers de leurs biens pour les rendre come en le brisant-antefais des esclaves dans les pays etrangers.

No 108 3.3.63. Prolong sur leurs arrivels apres that Tditi is the centre of authority and justice for all the des environnements etelle under a not ^{in the} ~~the~~ French protectorate

and that they should be traduits devant un tribunal criminel, form of ete punis conformement aux articles 265, 266 & 267 of the penal code.

Unknown - not peculiar to the present day - Bantam
 process too - white milled - white
 Is it not true that sales of certified beef can be selected
 if cholesterol was found rather low etc - check really checked
 Relation of ashier gold but a new specimen. Police
 Is this the subject of a middle class in Tanna.

PRG 568

Adm 1 / 5826

Richard's to Kugeone Fanny Island 8.5.63

✓ Richard's letter of 30.11.62 on SM has 25 releases re SM exposed
 etc

& the instructions to the captain of the L'Atalante Fendle

ordonnateur to the Administrative Council

File 18
 Report of the Procurement Officer concerning the main report on the
 visit of the SM to E.I. & the relation of the 2.

Includes see out to trade vegetables, potatoes etc for chickens,
 patches - suggests that visitors to get enclosed & swim for the shore
 but 2 would be hit not to eat with the crew.

Cent souxante un

Has to let on on ite

No. 296 29.6.63 ↓ Schena Corai buys back
6 Tongans & a Tokelau (heavy view of Tonga)

La Crozier needed. Dunde buys view of Tongans & Tokelau
held in Managers for 27.6.63 ~~Free~~ MIT holders

free as policy to let people know. Write and explain

free but his is trying to sell her. 2 other

Atin set to Perm to find confederates, ^{Protectors} or prolonga Fuente def.

1.7.63

To de Lessor 29.6.63 — has received by Corai his letters of
10 April and 8 May — delighted that his first expenditure had
resulted in Pennin Guennet stops the security business Polymerase.

Includes will now realize that she under French protection their rights will
be defended — negotiation to de Lessor that the ^{of the whaler} French cause is in
his hands.

Fuente buys 2 Atin islands to help the Tongans Hokai. La Crozier
needed. Letter of Write free to go but it is mind out to sell her — it
is his affair — owned of 5 Tongans has ~~good~~ had excellent effect on
others and their attitude towards the French God. He is firmly delighted that
that their respect and attachment to France will be increased
Hopes Fuente can buy back one return

301 30.6.63 - La Reunion use of the recruiting fleet organized
by Lilloa, ~~in a way~~ Enclit that Chilean Gov. was in
no way responsible for the project 'which has acted in the most
appropriate manner for the standpoint of justice and humanity'.

Exc. Lettre to Chag' d'offences, Santiago, ? Jan 1863. Confession
lost in Navy - 5 sailors on shipboard would probably have been
killed but for La Reunion's vessels of trade & the interests of the
Catholic mission. They were taken to Valparaiso.

The report of the captain makes it quite clear that a fever of speculation
surged certain people in the west coast of America ~~was~~ following the
Cronos prefect's rule of the first captives of Polynesian Peru.
Personnel of Confession except the Frenchman Le Favreux (admiral of the
Navy, who is a Confession) are returning to Valparaiso by the Fuente &
other of the Nations Salvemius.

450 23.9.63 report at de Correa suggests that any to
his lineage in the Guayas case should be started with the forced labor
related out to the affairs & refugees of the Naciones. Also starts valley
in case of S.M.

Exc. Lettre to Chag' d'offences, Quito, 27.2.63 says that sole cause to
commit gov. of Ecuador was withdrawal Ecuadorian authorities thank Gov. for
certain treaty of the Guayas affair.

Le Centre - Armiral Commandant en chef la Division Navale du Pacifique.

Donations to de Lersops

4.12.62 31.5.63.
31.12.62
31.1.63 3 563 re Gungas.
4.3.63
31.3.63

Adelate arrived at Tugueora the day the Loterde Tréville left.

Pulvie to Lersops 30.3.63. Adelate saw her smoke but
LT didn't see the sailing ship. Salvo on Rocades retit
out look to Valfraiso Rocades single for outside de justice.
Left bank of Gua due a bank. 2 ra left on ship. 5 salvo in Papa.

Guis résumé of use of the Gungas

See related letter for the Surrender of the Gungas to Ued 28.3.6.3 by
by the Society - General of the Commission General. States ship chartered by
the Spanish firm Iane ('marre') & the Society du Conseil
de Q Gungas to recruit Polynesian colors left Gungas 15
February & arrived Toulou 17 March & swift provision for Resulit to
engage Adelate but refused on account of behavior of Pavani recruits
(Adelate). Iane & the Gia he exclusive monopoly of itubuy Adelate.
Requests some Indigo to recruit as per in other letters & as ordered

By the F2 Govt. in Tegucigalpa. Now reports all attempts
to remit remedy to colored contract.

Govt. and 28.3.63. Public will oppose the remedy of
all news in his power.

Also see letter to Lescage 1 May 1862 relating

Letter of Ordination to Captain

Captain reply

Letter of Administration

Engagement

Letter to Chargé d'Affaires at Guayaquil.

Report of Procurement Officer on reward for Trade coin to Pofete.

Finds that Sanguin was ignorant of what had happened re trade before
being Guayaquil de on arrival Pofete. After seeing replies & letter
from Captain has decided to let the matter to Guayaquil. Has
written to C de A Guayaquil explaining why he has been so delayed.

Print on 11.4.63 Trade has also turned up. Further attempts he
arrested Captain but has now been heard of a violent discussion
with her crew.

①

Ch 2, p 12¹² Minute of Foreign Affairs to Minute of Navy and Colonies
2.12.62, Leach de Lessard to Minute 12.10.62 and Lamb, Gellner, to
Minute 25.9.62.

French land at Gellner collect Desnoyers.

Charpentier
The French land at Porora^{Porora} raised the Ministry of FA in Paris by letter dated
6.1.63 of Penning^{Penning} recruits^{attests} in Polynesia.

De Lessard to Minute 29.11.62 says Puy Solida rejects his protests. Chilean
ship arrived last week long with 200 recruits being taken 48 days on the
road trip which makes him think they must be from the Tongans.

Copy English Abstract.

F2. Lamb, Gellner, to Ministry, 29.1.63 - notes from Bella Desnoyers
sold for some amount as that on Ordelante thought to be from Tongans
Tuylla & Guadalupe asked how much French ships since officers were asked
to remain on board any seeking refuge. Officer of Doude was also ready to take
the a board, but no one came as they were heeded. Eliza name and with
238 also sold at 120-200 fathoms only for land. notes despatched

* see for further land 1 stands at land it had to admitted Tahiti.

before after of Devotion but were stopped by men and with letters.
Ordelante sold for 2nd trip with 76 fathoms (to Tongans). Michel Morison in
E.I. left said. Several notes already despatched in the boundaries.

The Centre de Chassecloup - Loulat, South of Navy & Colonies.

Loulat, Gullon, to Unity 12.3.63. 5 nec Pannin ships are avail. with
 700-800 recruits. The seamen taken by the Pannin got one not had
 the slightest effect due to several members of the Gallon Commission being
 interested, for various reasons, in the security features. Police inform that of
 Loulat under these she should be supervising the features carefully and
 being willing. French centre at Tchite has probably found most
 efficacious & has wanted 'one more structure'. Notes are referring to
 in regard to such & a large number has died - the forehead piece has fallen
 considerably. Note at Gullon Hospital says he has 38 & says cannot take
 to the new conditions. Others die for influenza and dysentery. Worst
 appears one for the whole nearest to Gullon (i.e. Easter?) that from
 further off Fr. Polytechnic are better at resisting disease & are
 accustomed to such.

Minister for F.A. to Minister for Tong & Samoa 31.5.63 - There has been
 only steady letter for Gov. of Tahiti & wishes to associate himself increasingly
 with the appreciation expressed by him on the action taken by P. de la Brousse.
 In seeing further instructions to de Lesseps to decline the intervention of the Linn
 cabinet in an affair which is solely the concern of the Protectorate Islands, should
 interests be suggested.

F.A. to Tong & Samoa ²³ 25.6.63. Has now heard from de Lesseps that the
 Peninsular Government, recognizing the justice of his restricted representations, has
 decided not to issue any more licenses & to jugged future arrivals of
 ships on existing licenses to some examination - this by a Decree dated
 28.4.63. Minister will receive this with satisfaction, due to a large
 degree, to the exception measures taken by the Govern at Tahiti which took
 quick action to frustrate the effects of the permits.

De Lesseps now seeing the results for the Protectorate wishes now to
 survey their representation. He has decided a Franco-Pennine Commission of enquiry.
 He has caused action to be taken in the Peninsular Court against the Captain of the
Espresso, his principal accomplice the doctor has escaped. Consul at Callao has
 reported that he has reprobated 6 Polynesian & obtained many reports further.

Exc. Consul, Callao, to Minister for F.A., 12.5.63. 3 natives from Nukuhiva have
 taken refuge in Callao & another gone on board the Galathée. Ex Juge Zalana. All
 put on the Protectorate release. Aorai†. Gaca also put on board.

† reference 335 papers

3 notices sent to Tobata are being received only by Legation.

~~5 notices~~ 5 notices also attached.

P.S. 16 notices of Tobata's men, sea children have asked for protection. I am sorry to their security & reputation.

At the request of the Legation to have the entire crew of the Espresso I learnt the 8 individuals have already been arrested. The three passengers who were repatriated, on the order of the Governor of Tobata are going to help with the enquiry. Despite the resistance offered by the guilty it seems that the Saurian Government are inclined to bring them to justice.

The seizure of the vessel & its ~~commander~~ (La Geothée) and the help of the ~~commander~~ has ~~assisted~~ contributed to the success described above.

Note: Monsieur le Centre Annuel Bouët, pro commandant en chef
of the station des nees du Sud.

Recour affairs to Colonies 7.12.63 forwards the notice of the court of
appel at Lora dated 29.10.63 reversing the notice of the court of
First Instance on Captain Detout of the Espresso for 6 years 'de
galères' (galleys) and the master-cook William Cole for 4 years.

The charges were laid at the instigation of the Consul General & Chey' d'Offices
of France against the captain & crew of the Espresso accused of being
harboured various native subjects on protected grounds of France at Tahiti and
in the Mangrove Islands.

Colonies to FA (related) re S.M. & Meade. Decree of 22.4.50 & 30.8.60
established a Criminal Tribunal. Recours charged before it with being concerned since
of 6.9.50 finding that sole ports of entry are Papeete & Taarua (Taarua?)
or Tahiti & Vapetouai on Moorea. Also Decree of 11.8.62 finding the
penalty for violation of various articles 265-8, 301(?) & 405 of penal code
prohibiting registration of people.

No. 489⁵ 1.10.63 - Dumont (arrivé à royaume de 519
brigade of the Pacific fleet. Sailed at Toulon on 20.8.63 to
6.9.63 Hotel de la Residence visited its hospital. 40
died en route. (one of new) Rem in 8 days quarantine.

Ex 2 Report on the voyage of the Dumont and the refection of 29
Polynesians, of the Canada. 10.9.63

Ex 3 Duke's Report dated Toulon 6.9.63. Smallpox broke out soon
after departure. Office evacuated. Resident & his surgeon personally
took sick to rooms in the Hotel de la Residence. Isolation
effect of quinine. No further recruitment. Vaccines essential.

Ex 3 Remble's report. 7 Hongkongs & 1 Tahitian

586 26.10.63. Refection of 8 natives of Papa who brought Cora.

- 232, 8.6.64 - Papa 96 - 29.7.63
- 115 - 27.8.63
- 159 - 15.12.63
- ~~13 - 18.1.64~~
- 2 - 12.2.64
- 16 - 5.2.64

314

Tahiti Ministry has his doubts of 5.2.64 concerning his apprehensions
of Governor's conduct.

2000 Hongkongs died in outbreak of 12,000

1.10.63 Return to Trinity Diary

Captain Lebris

40 died before arrival at Tair-hal. Not one of the crew.

Report of Rendit and the Budget

Administrative Gen. has no income at the moment.

News for Hungarian district - notice he clearly suffered from Exposure and other human troubles and even for millfare.

Diary in 3 days quantities at Pofete. Work for completion of mine to be met by post each trimester.

Left Ullar for Tihite valley at Panyta with despatches & the intention to get notice 3 miles at Zudstina so that the road could be attended by the state's district. All condensed when they left. I was a hard rest and lost one while but get it.

arr. Tair-hal 20 August

Diary left when 7 Hungarians & a Tihitean

are going and did this way (5.9.63) - one who has get millfare

172

172

344

The witness, called upon by M^r Robin,
declares that the food given to the
indians consisted of rice & salted meat,
that they themselves were doing their own
cooking & that they did not complain.

The Queen has willed that her husband
& her eldest son themselves go to the ~~island~~
Tuamotu Islands in order to convey
her sympathy; but at the same time chiefs
^{must not be spared} stern sentences because they have let
themselves be ticked in a so coarse a
manner & because they ~~have~~ forgotten
to make the Protectorate laws respected.

So after having heard the witnesses
M^r Langorayano has asked the President
for permission to speak & has declared to
the Tribunal that the Indians of the
Tuamotu islands kidnapped by the vessel
Mole W had taken a law suit & had asked
him as their representative, & his function
he has come to the following conclusions.

Agreement between Mr Knapp + the
owners of the Peruvian vessel Mercedes +
the inhabitants of Sakarava, Tuamotu
Is.

It has been agreed that the said
Indians will have to cultivate the
lands + do all the work that will be
"required".

They will receive 5 piasters each
per month whether they are men, women
or big children. This amount will be
paid at the end of each month.

The owner will give them effects
which will suit them without
deducting the cost from their wages.
These effects will be given to them
free ->

The owner will also give them food
which will be given free without
any withdrawal from their wages.

The women will have to help
their husbands + to take care of the
house.

of my family, that I am learning
behind, I recognise that I owe for that
to the ----- the said sum.

4. That it is recognised by this paper
that I have embarked + ^{taken the risk} committed
myself of my own spontaneous free
will, in order to be taken to Peru,
to work + diligently + intelligently, in
the faithful carrying out of what
has been stipulated;
5. That I have acknowledged + accepted
to commit myself to this new work
after having been taught + explained
fully in the presence of an interpreter
all the articles of the present contract;
convinced that my present situation will
be bettered, I accept + commit myself
to ~~the~~ faithfully carry out under
the -----
7. ∴ we have signed in duplicate, so that
it is valid for all contracting parties.

When the Justice Dept made a search on board they discovered a large number of copies of a contract written in Spanish. All these copies were in the large trunk of Capt Urbaso.

I native of the island of
aged status of my own free will & with the consent of my King have found it good to contract for my personal services with to work for the Republic of Peru, under the following conditions

- 1 That I commit & bind myself by the present contract, to serve to his heirs, or to those in charge, or to the one he will nominate; for the term of 8 years, compulsory
- 2 That in consideration of my services as a worker will give me 4 piasters in Peruvian ^{currency,} food & clothing.
- 3 Before embarking on account of my future work, I have received the sum of for the maintenance & support

1. Interpretation of Articles 1 & 2 of the
Decree of 6 Sept 1850

2. Interpretation of Article 7 of the

D. of 11. Aug. 1862

3. Crimes of misdemeanors as defined
under the Articles 265, 266, 267, 268, 341
& 405 of the Met. Penal Code.

FA to Colonies 18.8.63. By letter dated 20.7.63 and 7.8.63 you have asked me about the details of Penman's activities re endorsement of Polygrams to you request my advice on the nature of the instructions which should be sent to the Governor:-

- (1) The decision to be made re Penman's franchise awarded also, after investigation, we find to be admitted outside the zone of our power.
- (2) What should be done about P. 44's held at Papeete, or if sold the proceeds of sale.
- (3) What should be done about those who attempt illegal operations in islands outside our jurisdiction.

On (1) I agree entirely with the course that you propose to adopt. The Comte of the Society Islands appears incompetent to take cognizance of crimes committed outside its jurisdiction, & all that can be done appears to be to report the acts to the Penman Comte. I am sure that this course may seem insufficient, but I am really for you but to urge the Chef d'Offices at Lora to bring pressure to bear on the P. Govt. to take vigorous action as decided by the ministers. 2. de Lampa was justified in writing in cases involving non-French by the interest which we have in the existing business against the interest of Polygrams (or kindly).

As a result I agree entirely with your proposal to deliver up to the P. Govt. the 2 new rules of the Comte on Tahiti, the only aim to show that it means what it says. The one applies to the 2 on the S. of T. 2000 what should be ret'd after payment of any fines and expenses incurred, or if sold the proceeds to be ret'd after payment of duties.

If the Tahiti Comte declines to take cognizance of the S.M. it should be taken over and sent to Lampa or if sold the proceeds sent to de Lampa for the P. Govt.

In cases where ministers act on outside our jurisdiction it is difficult to intervene directly but we can intervene indirectly should any minister be convicted only in cases where subject to the Protector it could be arrested and detained for the duration of an inquiry. As to islands in French near our principal establishments I think such action would lead to protests which we should avoid.

I should say that - the difficulties between de Looze and the Lima Cabinet re the
institute of a mixed commission to search for Polygraphers have caused, towards the
end of June, an interruption of the direct relations with the Peruvian Minister
for Foreign Affairs. But I trust there will only be temporary. Meanwhile a
certain number of notices has been collected in the neighbourhood of Lima
& put in a bulk for reproduction at the expense of the Peruvian Government.

Letter from Bristol to Mr of FA, 13.7.63. Re collection of notices
Mr. of FA of Peru had sent a somewhat vague & injurious letter to de L. saying that the
idea that he had written to the Peruvian C de A in Paris offering of the transcription
of an agent. De L. had replied in a paper (?) & of to enquire about
the British C de A.

De L. advised to respect minority notices. Peruvian Govt. very determined
of FA refused to reproduce the notices but de L. pointed out that the P. flag was
being brought the whole for evidence notices & it would be dangerous to go without
being essential by De L. 68 notices were on authority on 8.7.63.

✓
Gov. to Ministe No. 232, 8.6.64 acknowledges the Ministe's despatches of:-

29.7.63, No. 96

27.8.63, No. 115

15.12.63, No. 159

12.1.64, No. 2

5.2.64, No. 16

re Pennian affair.

Thanks YE for his despatch of 5.2.64 conveying his appreciation of Gov's conduct.

This letter No. 16, 5.2.64 entitled 'Commentary on a letter from the Ministe of F.A., (the Gov is addressed as M le capitaine de frégate G E de la Rubine, commandeur E.T. F2 d'Oréanie)

Refers to correspondence re Grayson & to a letter which the Gov had sent to de Lescrope in explanation of the reproach which de L. had sent him charging him with a lack of firmness in relation to the acts of the Pennian ships.

The Ministe of F.A. (M. Droczy) writes that on the contrary you had written rightly but all praise side the minister.

(The letter from F.A. referred to is dated 31.5.63, & talks more fully of Calves for a letter from the Gov re his actions re 2 Pennian ships & Calves with Gov de Lescrope on the same subject. He adds: 'I thank you for this interesting communication & wish to associate myself without reserve to the appreciation received for you to the services adopted by M. de la Rubine')

Gov. to F.A. 30.4.63

(See Gov's letter No. 450 of 23.9.63)

Minute to Gov. No. 36, 25.3.63

Advise him of concert of activity of Peruvian ships, in particular the Bella Margarita & direct him, if he has not already done so, to consult with the Civil Power States to concert measures for the protection of Fr islands from these criminal acts

Minute to Gov. No. 115, 27.8.63

Gov has approval to the measures taken by him re the Mascotas, Supite Reina, Lora, Grogas and Nota to stop the odious acts committed by the Peruvian fleet, & expresses the hope that his efforts joined to the energetic complaints made by the Comité d'Albano in Lora will forestall any renewed acts.

Minute of FA has said the Perm does not intend to grant further licenses or allow further activity. De Lersoff is searching in the country for Fr recruits with a view to their repatriation. Follows numerous accounts of notices & measures taken by Perm & also Comité Amal Boriet etc. details drawn from letters de Lersoff to Perm
(should be translated)

Minute to Gov. No. 159, 19.12.63(?)

Notifying result of Espera case, & Journal Indépendant dated 8.7.63.

Min. to Gov. , No. 2 , 12.1.64

Notifying cancellation of Palacios

Gov. to Ministry No 232, 8.6.64

1 that Y E for you despatch of 5.2.64, concerning your
opinion of my conduct

In acknowledgment receipt of Ministry despatches of

29.7.63, No. 96

15.12.63, No. 159

12.1.64, No. 2

5.2.64, No. 16

I asked the Chef d'Affaires in Lima of letter of 16.11.63, his view on what
should be done about the seaf. Nav. & he advised in a detailed topical
letter to maintain the status quo indefinitely, but I could not afford letter.

I have therefore acted in my own way in March lifted the embargo on the SM
in November 1862.

I have had plenty of reasons for doing so. The currency of the ship has closed
down and interest for the period of its detention. I merely replied that the embargo
had been lifted.

Then there was the case of the can, I might without parallel in my legislation &
I was convinced also the lighter, no doubt being actual product for his losses at
E I, abandoned the ship.

The sale price of 20,994.61 pesos was debited in the Colon Treasury
on your instructions.

The report of Palacios as Comandante of Peru might have led to a

settled but it offends off.

The 2 guilty for the Incidents are at Tanarua Fort and admit
to their fault guilty. They are not returned or subject to bond
later but need well guarded.

Gov. to Ministry No 393, 10.9.64.

Have write to you re Case affair in: -

3.3.63, No. 108.

30.3.63, No. 144

25.5.63, No. 255

Have now heard for de Lencop dated 27.6.64 (enclosed) saying re of the settlement of all
matters - I enclose my reply. Re Case I omit your directions re payment of 20,994.61 fees.

I have not been able to carry out my intention of visiting Rapa & Easter Island for
which visit of reasons were given in my despatch of 26.11.63, No. 536.

I still shall address you in Ocean of course for La Kruka & Unkase.

Pelous's boat turned up. He set to San-Francisco, then to Hawaii, then back to San-Francisco
& then returned to Lima. An officer of the Tahiti Gvt. met him on the Panama packet going
south & Pelous told him the story of his preparations to get to a port which he could
easily get to if he or sided.

The 2 cases de Lencop letter of 27.6.64 & de la Ruelin's reply of 10.9.64 are identical as
dearly with the final settlement of affairs with Pan of which Pan paid 125,000 pesos
also refers to this in fact to Ministry, No 395 of 14.9.64, which reminds how it should
be spent.

Guayas

Response to de Lesseps 30.3.63, - will fully determine as she could easily visit and provision and start recruiting.

enc. visited letter from Sifcego to Guano.

Letter 9.5.63 - after meeting Sifcego has decided to let Guayas go. and getting letter from Giffen

left of Giffen being a violent conflict with his crew.

Reply from Admiral to Guano's letter of 4.12.62 read on 11.5.63

Gov to de Lesseps, 31.5.63.

Decide to purchase 8 Tengeras

L-T to Giffen

393 10.9.64

359 25.8.64

Giffen's visit to see the Tengeras for Tengeras - now reduced to 100 for 160 - but L-T will buy 17 new boats engaged to work for Stewart for 2 years. My proposal on condition returned to Giffen on 30.7.63, over 10 feet & heavy.

Good opportunity to make France Brown in the area Giffen's little visited could make great advantage so far. Good sales.

Requests permission to substitute by a ship of the local station.

^{Tengeras}
all ~~Tengeras~~ ^{Tengeras} ~~replaced~~ ^{replaced} in July 1862 substituted on L-T to be on 26.7.64 (and in Tengeras).

Arresting of Peruvian vessels
coming, recruiting in the Oceania
islands which are under the
Protectorate of France.
between the Govt. of Tahiti & French
Foreign Affairs.

allocated by the Peruvian
government.

Portfolio of the 10. parcel of documents

... (...) - boat ...
...
E. 1a.

E 2a Hand documents to Peruvian Govt.
De L. to be told by Min F. A. to hold
to urge Peru to hold trial - visit
penalties be applied to all criminals
who are discovered + arrested.

Final Destination Mercedes - Coea. Soap. ?

If Teh. Tribunal is called upon to know
facts attributed to the vessel on which
you have put the embargo, said vessel
must be released only after payment
of fines + costs; if sold because of
abandonment, for any reason, the money
minus costs + fines to be given to Consul
Gen in Lima who will give it to those
considered by Peru Govt to have a right to it.

If Teh. Tribunal ^{is} competent case for
deposing this affair to Peru - the vessel +
crew to go to Callao under escort.
If sold money to be put at disposition
of Peru Govt, info Consul G.

No. 36

28.3.63 Paris

First notification in Paris of kidnapping
Bella Margarita mentioned.

Turn Consul in Callao, who has a
list of 13 vessels including Bella Marg-
quite sure necessary measures taken
by now (before receipt of Jan letter) -

No.

37.8.63 Paris -

Letters rec re assent of ^{Mercedes} S.M. Guayas +
Misti, Cota.

Approves efforts. Hopes measures
+ Charge's in Peru has addressed to
Govt of Lima will have effect of
preventing such excesses.

Informed Peru not giving any more
licenses to recruit in Oceania. See
no more coming of vessels needed
to Emperor

Appeal by Uru Basso ^{to Emperor} not approved -
In view of Gov's severity.

Mercedes 7 yrs + 10 yrs forced labour

As to the 2 Peruvian women of area in C - B - Tahiti (see P)

Intercepted - acts of / judgment does - belong / Tribunal of
See 13, (3 acts) committed - include outside of Peru, also
of a bunch ; acts - long / Tribunal - Peru

4-12-62 cont.

natives taken whether or not under
protection of feance. No conclusion.

~~108~~ Documents Concerning
S.M.

21.3.63

George Bennett interpreted to ---

Tribunal
Report of Proc. Imp. to the Tribunal of
the Is + Colony in Oceania.
Aboard S.M.

12-11-62 by Capt. & Commissioner
in Papeete.

Several irregularities on the well
of the crew that Saseo -

184-27.3.63

Tel. 14.1.?

No. 4 Papeete

142
28.3.63 To Capt of S.M. from Gov;
~~allowing him to leave~~
also allowing crew also if Gov. appears
ship held until ^{Minist^r} will have let me know
in midst of device complications we
Nov. until now: long stay in Papeete

Cont

Re vessels kidnapping the future of islands outside our Prot. we will not be able to arrest them, without declaring ourselves mandated with protection of whole Poly archipelago because would lead to claims that must be stopped.

Approve vessels anchoring in Papete or brought by natives, or shown themselves must be object of an inquiry of which result under seriousness of affair to be brought before Newian Govt.

Even if met in islands of our Prot. & if armed for receiving, they could be arrested - subject to preventative detainment during the inquiry of which they would be the object - would have indirect effect on islands not under protection.

159-

Paris 15. 9. 63

Copy of Court of appeal Lima has
~~increased~~ - augmented the sentences
given by Tri of 1st instance
condemned to several years in the
galleys. Capt. & crew master of Emp.
guilty of kidnapping natives in
Poly. - & prosecuted at request of C/DA.
in Peru Decree Shows intention of Peru Govt.
to pursue ~~the~~ damages & repair wreck
in instances of solicitations. have
determined it to undertake -

Lima 8.7.63

Translation from El Mecesia 8.7.63.

From Minister to Govt

Paris 12.1.63

Peru Govt intends sending Mr. Palacios
to Tahiti Temp mission re difficulties
arising from kidnappings -
Letter of accreditation given
Request's welcome.
Peru wants Cons Gen in Tahiti.
No objection.

will have told you

greatest moderation in all methods we
have had to take over to stop or
prevent the developments of unregulated
enterprise organized in cells on a
large scale. This enterprise being
attached the pope of islands
submits to sovereignty of the state
& hope this mod will have the
effect of opening the eyes of the
speculators in Peru & on your
return will tell them how wrong
this enterprise on all account &
refrain from giving any other
qualifications

~~142~~

144

30-3-63

The

108

acc. on Rapate to Coa captured
at Rapa by the natives & brought
to Rapate - Capt Aguirre
not doubting the sentence ^{in that} of his
criminal conduct in Easter Is
would bring, ^{to him} sooner or later, ~~that~~
~~take~~ the advantage of the liberty &
freedom I had ^{allowed} ~~let~~ ^{to} him escape
with his cook.

The Coa is "abandoned with
only two former members of crew.
In this situation I give the order
to sell all perishable goods & I
believe the bad state of ship we
shall be obliged to sell ship also.
Funds will be given to Treasurer
Ship to visit Rapa & other islands
& return natives who brought Coa.
Dorade 6.5.63 for Marquesas

will return to Papeete passing Poneyn
so. where useful information will be
gathered.

I believe if there is an encounter ~~of~~
with a remnant of the Peewee ships
& the Doad

If in the event of mass. to
temporarily board the ~~transport~~ ^{Doad}
a 16 mares to reinforce its crew
which has been calculated for
working the ship.

Jackie 2.15 - 2 hrs + 1 hr 10 min

To ^{the} Chiefs of ^{the} Tiamotu Islands

I have just learnt that foreign vessels are going through your islands & using a few residents for agents they are ^{luring} natives with the help of fallacious promises. Do you know what is awaiting these unfortunate people? It is slavery; they will never see their country again. Please be quick in telling those people who will be tempted by the such an illusory profit ^{please} oppose ^{please} such projects.

Those actions are criminal in the code of all nations.

The Queen & Imperial Commission, order you, as soon as you receive this letter to let it be known by all possible means, that they forbid under any excuse whatever it may be, the

embarkment of protectorate subjects
on these vessels which it seems are
despoiled by pirates.

Order the arrest of all those who would
give such malicious advice. Take them
under a good watch to Papeete.

While waiting for more information
about what is happening, I am sending
the ^{steamer} Latouche Tréville to your islands
in pursuit of these islands. Please
help the captain of this vessel to
capture them so that their crime can
be justly punished!

E. G. de la Riche

31.5-63

From the Gov. to de Lesseps

I have no doubt that M^r Gill's call will produce a big effect. It is meant to be this way & answers very well to ^{generous} interest coming from England do not be greeted with big sympathy & not to have a showing of sympathy resulting can result from this.

~~I have three~~

at the island of Mangareva ^{Mangareva} where a protestant missionary M^r Gill lives some natives, ^{among whom} ~~some of whom~~ is the son of the head chief, have been kidnapped by betrayal. M^r Gill has written ~~later~~ warm letters to ----- content not known.

Alie 6 natives in same manner among them son of Head Chief. Friendly with Leancee - asking for son to be returned, 2 natives to be taken on d.t. to go to Peen if necessary to

reclaim relieve friends taken as
result of trap.

Marquesan Interpreter under orders of
de Lesseps.

No 296 of 29-6-63

Schooner Orai ordered to go to
Callao relieve with 5 Marquesans + 1
Tah equipped with ^{supplies} ~~instruments~~ - benefits.
^{Smoked} La Conception emigration to supply
market in Callao - Weeked.

Trade to Mex. & beyond returned 10.6.63

27-6-63 message -

Capt wants to sell Misti

Published naval correspondence

Guyas
So it is seen I have been seen in
inquiry to abolish criminal operations

said they were

2 natives in S.M. held by force. also
there was amongst men at Gambos.
(between crew & natives).

Capt S.M. wounded in hip - gunshot wound
15-11-62 declaration. Saseo & Mackay
several E. Is. had come on board &
2 stayed on owl will.

28-10-62 anchored Mangareva. fight
armed with palm stakes. they say
did not provoke - M's had seized open
rifle & took gun & knife 30 cap & 3
brought natives.

Capt & Saseo kept silence about
Mangareva. Imp. B. heard rumours.
S.M. did not trade for pearls whilst
anchored in Mangareva.

Saseo made beautiful suggestions
to crew of pilot, inviting them to go on
board & go to Peen, inviting them to
take with them as many of their
friends as they could, even women & children.
Promising to bring them back in a
v. short time, reminding that they
do not talk of it to Green - to one
summing if necessary & that once they

on board I would forbid them to touch ^{it} vessel at all & he would use a knife if necessary.

If fallerius' promises had no effect it wasn't Sasso's fault, but distrust inspired natives.

Behaviour of S.M. - suspect. Always armed - gun & knife. When ashore.

If events were hostile ... of natives to get aid as soon as possible of S.M. because of fear. Shrewd common sense, nasty thing would have happened.

Cap. guilty & Sasso - formed as. violating human rights of natives etc. Their failures due to ~~causes~~ ^{causes} not of their making. Actions showed deep wickedness - of guilt which must be punished.

No 490

23-9-63

23-9-63

~~Delayed~~ delayed execution of sentence of Mercedes, Capt. & S.C. are detained in ^{post-} foot
 imposing action similar to Guyana /
 would not mention but previous action Ch. d'affaires thought
 him too lenient.
 C.A. ~~deploring~~ ^{Thanking him for his feelings for moderation favouring} leniency given Capt. & S.C. of S.M. V Thanking him etc. leading
 to good relations with Peru.
 Does not know what to do in Taluk
 because Lima so distant.

~~Reply~~ ~~Leniency shown previously~~
 not such firm measures as Mercedes (Peru)
 as Ecuador.

~~Leniency~~
 C.A. deploring indulgence shown to
 Capt. & S.C. of S.M.
 does not agree leniency although
 the ships expiring etc.
 97 islands avoid action debatable.
 & leave it to you to decide

Enc. C de A at Equador.

Agreeing on ~~cancel~~ activities & saying
license withdrawn so no more trouble

~~HAHA~~
Thanking for courtesy re Guyana.

499 1-10-63

all taken ashore.
14 died natives on board before arrival
at Talohae. No crew have died of
smallpox. Got rid of Polynesians there

Encls.

11-

232

8-6-64

To Minister

asked CIAffairs if he approves of him
lifting embargo on S.M. + the CA
replied keep it independent but
he has to wait for official letters
! I had to act alone + last week
lifted the embargo which was
imposed last November 1962. Because
no reason to maintain the embargo
& he was requested by consignee
for indemnities + interest in proportion
to time the vessel detained. So
lifted + let him know

Cola sold for 20,994 for 61 centimes
keeping money

398 14-9-~~64~~ 64

125 Thousand Leanes from Roman
Govt. reimburse a relief ^{for} Polynesian
tribe & indemnities for families
who died.

Asks minister to hand over 6 to date
for local service.
Administration will take amount for
repairs sums already spent on
Mang & Ternito & remainder given
to natives victims

No 414 28.4-64

Memorandum by M. Edmond de Lessaps to the Minister of
Foreign Relations of Peru (The Polynesian question)

Enclosure No. 3 to his despatch of 29 March to the Minister in Paris.

Lima, 20 Feb 1863

On 15 Oct 1862 I had the honor, with respect to the arrival in
Peru of 250 natives from Polynesia by the
V. Adelaide & have the honor to ^{address} the
predecessor of Y E that I was
protesting against these operations
in so far as they affected the sovereignty
of my country & that I reserved to
myself both the right of contest &
of the ^{loads} transport of polynesian migrants
& indemnities for those of them who
are ~~subject~~ to the jurisdiction of the
Empire would ^{not} have left their motherland
of their own will & with the consent of
the authorities which govern them.

On the 12th Nov. of the same year Y E
has ^{was} been good enough to tell me the reasons
which according to you you were
unable to receive ^{mitige} this protest nor this
reservation while committing itself to give

* orders which would contribute to eradicate abuses & to avoid discussions on this matter."

I won't give here the argument of the ministry of External Relations of Peru -
Because ^{it} applied to settlers of another race other than Polynesians I recognize it has its value as a foreign representative would not ~~be able to intervene or claim the control of the contracts involving taking of personal taking of an oath involving ~~swearing undertaking of one party~~ a sum of money~~ ~~loyally proposed by some & willingly & freely accepted by others.~~

The ? was not to affirm gratuitously as V.E. did that the contracts of the Polys have all been made in a regular manner & to draw from this the conclusion that "if the authorities which govern them have not intervened in order to prevent them, to sustain them or to modify them, according to their laws, it is because they have not been able or have not wanted to have their right of investigation recognized

without their being able to judge these contracts in a foreign country nor exerciseth jurisdiction that they have not invoked in their own country".

Y E expressing yourself in this way was admitting precisely as a fact of irrefutable authenticity that which for me from the beginning was the subject of doubt. Namely that there was a contract in the more practical & sense of the word.

Your ~~contract~~^{contract} on this topic was grounded on article 4 of the Concession act ^{with} of Byrne & on the inquiry of old points relevant satisfying the authorities of Callao. Of these two foundations I will allow myself only to discuss one, the other bears the consequence of an absolute trust of which I am not ready to judge neither the merit or the origin.

What does this act. 4 say?

Literally translated it stipulates the cont. engagements contracted by Byrne. " that one of several agents who will be paid by him & that the Govt will

authorise to certify the signatures
of the marks to be affixed by the
settlers at the bottom of their
contract."

The Pres. of the Council cannot
be but sagacious enough to see that
this clause associates two kinds
of facts that are entirely incompatible
indeed I see on one hand that these
agents mandated by the Govt of V.E
with a mission of the most sacred
character of which the goal is not
only to tell him about the beauty
of all the acts relating to this
immigration but also to provoke an
impasse & development by covering
it with a guarantee of the Peurain
morality & I see on the other hand
these same agents paid a remuneration
by the contractor, that is constantly or
forcibly placed in the alternative
of either not doing their duty or
neglecting their own interests -
Such heads agree badly ^{against} with the
loyalty which must ^{always} preside the
accomplish

inquiry of the nature of which I am involved. I will dare to say in frankness with wisdom & caution with which a Govt can't do away ~~with~~ never without impunity.

Without meaning to incriminate any of those agents I declare that their attestations & their testimony are virtually & full right void, & that the Govt of YE wouldn't have any solid ground to make them for their personal scruples, still less to oppose them to the presentation & to the arguments of a foreign minister who is speaking in the name of his humanity & in the name of his nationals. ~~mt~~

Moreover I would like to believe, Mr the Min., that in the interval which has passed between 12 Nov last & date of this memo that your belief relating to the perfect legality of this traffic (trade) & of the entire ^{wholly} liberty which has accompanied, this ~~trade~~ so you said, this contract,

this belief has received a deep blow
& that the cabinet of E. the great
Marshal has been instructed today
of the real consequence of this
scandalous trade of human flesh.

I will not expose here in detail
the heart-breaking scenes of which
the whole country has been the
witness for more than 2 months;
these unfortunate people snatched by
force or by trick from their homes,
from their families, from lay life
free & carefree, violently dragged
on to the haciendas, then hunted by
the police & their masters when they
were tiring to escape by fleeing,
to their regret die decimated by
nostalgia, other illnesses & bad
treatment. In the presence of these
human hecatombs of which the spectacle
public view happens every day under
our eyes, & under the eyes of the Peruvian
"respectable" authorities even
under the eyes of their owners, I

delight in observing it, ^{have} pleading
+ ~~are~~ pleading with more + more
energy the ~~clothes~~ ^{cause} of these unfortunate
people of which the death ~~strikes~~ ^{strikes} up
the public conscience + called for
energetic measures.

These faithful statistics, these
escape attempts, these aspirations
towards the missing motherland,
~~all these deep~~
deep to the point of death.

Do they show anything other
than the ~~effect of these~~ ^{absolute defects} of these
contracts, loyally proposed,
conscientiously + freely accepted,
other than the impudence
shameless speculation the
ethnic incompatibility of the
Polynesian relative to immigration
+ last (documents would also ^{allow} ~~take~~
me to say it) the reef against
which thanks to Act 4 of the

Concession ^{would break} ~~against which~~ the
wisdom of the Govt. so respectable
& so humane, of the great
Marshall President, ~~as these~~
advice from a friend were
going to be ^{ignored!} unknown. ~~is~~

Convinced as I am that the
Cabinet of Y.E. will not continue
to be insensitive to a protest
that nothing ^{said} has? Today
made void for me & here
renewed, by order of the Govt
of the Emp - ?

I would have desired to
finish here a communication ~~here~~
that my sympathies for the
Country & for the person of its
worthy leader makes painful

Unfortunately the grave events that
have taken place on the same scene
where this trade last carried on,
obliges me to continue.

Presented by ~~the~~ le Min for Ext. Affairs
for Peru in his memo that he sent
me dated the 16th of this month.

These events have ~~taken away~~ ^{removed}
the Poley question from the field
of diplomatic discussion & it
depended on him to circumscribe
it from ~~the~~ ^{the} start & they have
carried in on to the place ~~of~~ ^{submitted}
~~misde~~ ^{misde} ~~menor~~ which was actually ~~subject~~
to the penal measures of the maritime
code of the empire.

The capture of S.M.s of the Mercedes,
Peruvian vessels, has been carried
out in conditions of perfect legality
& is a notorious & public fact & far
from thinking to shelter under the veil
of mystery the documents that the Gov.
of Peru, through whose case the capture
has been carried out, I have a great
interest that they be known not only by
you but also to the people involved because
they (the documents) will confuse the assertions
& the theories & also they will stop

speculators from sliding down a fatal slope. The whole country backs me in this fight.

There are 11 documents + he gives them trustingly to the Minister. Without citing the right I have to ask Y.E. to publish this whole correspondence. The example you have given me in Nov. last allows me to expect it will be published in the official periodical.

I am sending several extracts between the Consulate of H. M. Callao + the Legation. This extract No. 12. are related to the manifestations our flag has been the object on the part of the impetunate natives who were waiting on the E. M. Rosales + Teresa which were moved in Callao. The impetunate people were waiting for the last act of their sacrifice.

I leave it Y.E. to ~~recognise~~ recognise the significance of these demonstrations

The new force which is added to this argument which unfortunatly cannot be backed by irrefutable testimonies of the misdemeanor such as the one the G. of our establishment in Oceania has been able to supply.

The pieces 13 + 14 + 15 ^{show} ascertain the proceedings attempted by our Consul to ~~the~~ Admiral Valerica ~~to~~ to obtain in a disciplinary + administrative manner the punishment of the Capt of the Teesa who having recruited in Paeta the said Thomas Ocoa, a native from our Oceanic possessions, who not only did not respect the ^{provisions} conditions of this contract by bringing him back in spite of himself to Peen but also made him undergo bad treatment during the trip.

Taking advantage of his position the Capt of the Teesa has moreover obliged this man to be used as an

instrument to tick & kidnap the unfortunate natives who were brought to Callao.

The facts as exposed by Ocoa are confirmed by the said Harresmas a Dutch carpenter, who has disembarked from the same vessel & who has attested the facts under oath. The cost of repatriation of those French Polys will have to be paid by the capt. & there is certainly ground to add to it an indemnity proportionate to the misdemeanors of sequestration & to the bad treatment borne by the natives.

Mr the Com of the Navy has believed it necessary to defer to ordinary tribunals the complaint of M^r Des Hayes & have nothing to object to this measure if it is in harmony with the law of the country. However in this case Y E will allow me to find it strange that without intervention from the territorial judge the maritime authority acting in an administrative manner has at the request of the capt,

who has anchored in the roadstead, who
has put ~~at~~ ^{at} sea in tail in the arsenal
during 3 consecutive days & has had
the carpenter Harrismas & the suffer
the treatments & numerous penalties exposed
in his declaration. As a result there
is this bizarre fact which is revolting
allow ~~me~~ to say that in his case
the law has been proposed to the
individuals & not to the misdemeanor &
that the penalty was summary &
administrative against a seaman who
was accused by his capt but not
~~by~~ against a capt accused by an
inferior. Whatever it is anyway from
the criminal point of view whatever
the result of the complaint addressed
to the Admiral... by the consul of
France in Callao & feel obliged to
claim the immediate payment of
this indenture & his repatriation of
which I fix the sum to be from
to-day ----- Once he has gone
back to his country I will have to
answer in front of the Justice of

this country for the recent acts
he is himself accused - The
mags of T. will judge his cul-
pability & the circumstances in which
it took place - His excuses, if any
as I believe, will be weighed in a
just balance but it won't depend on me
I must confess to Y E whether he
will receive a verdict of acquittal
founded on the "coaction" which have
been used

as to matters relating to our
govt. m. to m. in. it is without doubt
that it has to deal vigorously the
energy of the example & the
promptitude of the reparation (in-
demnity?) etc, it seems to me,
more than necessary here. It is
a retraction which is advised
by its own interest if it was not
imposed anyway by the secret
rights of humanity & the place that
it has acquired for itself in the
civilised world.

The last document that I had the honour to send to YE under No. 16 is a declaration made by M^r Paul Gamero before M. the Consul of Chile in Callao. This doc^{ument} is interesting because it shows the uniformity of the processes used by these speculators to attract the Polys on board. The ^{working} is always under the name of the Peru... vessel & "to go to work for 4 months in a neighbouring island in return for a salary & then to be brought back home." The Govt. of YE, the consuls, the whole world & the unfortunate Polys know what this is all about while adding here M le Mm I believe I must let you know on a recruiting operation carried out in July last in the Leveyn islands for Tahiti. The details which follow have been communicated to the Leg. by H. F. M. Drouyn ~~de~~ Lhuys himself, you will appreciate, I have no doubt, the thoughts which have guided the behaviour, on this matter, of ^{Dept of} Foreign Affairs

A merchant from Tahiti M^r Beecher with whom the administration of the colony had made an agreement to this effect, has been carried to this island by the S 211 which has taken on board the recruited emigrants numbering 98 (35 men 23 women & 40 children). The placing of these recruited people has been done by the call of the local administration which had beforehand set out the terms of the ^{hiring} contract including all the guarantees usually promised to foreign emigrants of our colonies & administration. I must take the greatest care that these clauses must be faithfully observed by the various people involved. Carried out in such conditions this operation had nothing to be reprehensible for, M^r the Comptroller of Chasseloup-Labat ^{also} ^{moreover} Minister of the Navy hasn't he hesitated to approve this by ^{going} letting to the Commandant of our Oceanic Establishment the ability to renew it either in the Papeete Is, either in other islands of Polynesia, on the condition

of going on following all the necessary
cautions in the interest of the emigrants.

Enc. to Mr. P. de la R. to Mr.
for FA, 20.7.63

P.S. I was going to send you the
present letter when I rec. from the
Gov. new information which modifies
the situation through 2 letters
dated 30th March & that you will
find enclosed. M^r de la Richeie
announces on one hand that he has
authorised the capt & sup. of S.M.
to go to Peen whilst holding ^{his vessel}
in the stead of Pop. until rec-
orders from my dept. on the other
hand that the capt of the Coen
taking advantage of ^{the} freedom that
he was enjoying in T. had succeeded
in escaping from the island & there
were only on board two crew men -
M. d. R. had given the order to ^{sell} ~~send~~
immediately all perishable goods on
board & that he thought the bad conditions

of the vessel would make it necessary to sell it also soon. The yield from the sale had to be deposited ~~in~~ the Treasury in order to receive subsequently such destination which will be thought suitable.

Obviously this fact modifies the decision that we were going to adopt since there is no one on board the SM it seems to me impossible that we ourselves can start legal action on ~~the act~~ ^{the crew of} against the acts carried out by ^{the crew of} this vessel.

As to the Coa the crimes of the crew of this vessel have committed all so odious it would be suitable to think to have them led back to Callao & to give over to the Peruvian Govt the 2 crew men of the R. who have stayed in Tahiti so that they can testify if necessary in the trial that the authorities of ^{Peru} would want to start against the Capt & the owners.

Besides as this is an international matter which relates to our external

relations I cannot Mr de Mino deal with
refer to you on the decision which has
to be taken - I have the hon. therefore

^{to see if}
to let me know your opinion on the
nature of the instructions it is suitable
to send on this topic to Mr de la Rive.

If you could give me a definite destination
you think convenient to give to the two
vessels C. & S.M. or if they have
been sold where to send the money yielded
from the sale.

I have rec. at least from Mr de la R
under date of 30th March the information
that M Unibaso capt & M^r Knapp, interpreter
& navigator of Mex. Adel had already
been sentenced on the 14th of same month
by the criminal Tribunal of the Soc. Is.
the first one to 5 years & the 2nd to
10 years hard labour - However Mr de la R
had deferred the fulfilment of the judgment
which under the terms of the local ~~decree~~
of 22 April 1850 is without appeal & can
only be submitted for commutation under preliminary review.
The 2 people condemned have been confined in a fortified station where they

are suitably kept and fed and where they have to stay ~~where~~ until
the administration has received information ~~of~~ as to the result of the
~~case~~ petition for pardon made by the 2 individuals.

359
no 414 | | -5
28.8.64 Gov to Mitsy.

Recd recruits of July 1862

The nature of Parkyn see living in the deepest misery in the little islets
and enjoys in Tahiti a ~~small~~ ~~with~~ ~~active~~ well-being have all said,
to the great astonishment of the people who employed them, that they wanted
to see their own islands again; this is why I have sent them back
here in accordance with the conditions of contract that they had made in 1862.

The visit of LT of P 10 9 ~~of~~ ~~in~~ new discovery is
since committed of Penna vessels during their migratory action. Enclosed
is a ~~copy~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~episode~~ of P migratory.

a copy of recruits of [Redrafted of Gullet 12 - Feb 63
of [LT of P coast then 18 - rec'd - 18 frontier
reflected of, is a copy of P and, of 2 recruit,
- about an officer of P navy was embarked.

A P De of G 10 reduced - Jan 64 P 100 formerly
being 160 - Feb 63 of 2 2 18 → 18 Tahiti of
long of little of LT stayed of P 10 of order of people
entirely & reduced of 17 E, → 18 women, who had
embarked P. contract of 2 ec of 18 hands of 18 in 18
Stewart's agents is & authorized of 18. passage of LT,

I offered A a certificate of appreciation for his services.
 G 12 A returns a fine P - for i - 2 C P
) 2 2 e . when P refers to the firm a certificate of
 P 2 P for , which costs - and . for distance
 2 Tahiti; C - certainly (- P . usual & local
 station) able P ~~to~~ P ~~to~~ P ~~to~~ C 2 occasion.
 He A O believe - P political action P make P
 French born P part of mission, P rarely visited (C
 flag -

C P M J who speaks English quite well, -
 worked out (had . after . stay - Tahiti; and after
 P) - C protected under P , P said that Mission's
 for i ; C , extremely satisfied with P little group of
 workers, is C average but diligent in work -

O ., family 2 , Excellency P replicate P returns
 P G 15 (. usual & local station

E

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Left of 2 stroke Tréville to Gen., Tahiti, 9. 8. 64, En. in
Govt to Ministry, No. 3⁵89, 2⁵8. 64. (En. 2. 1.)

Sr. G. Newbury American subject, wife & child

Newbury and wife & child ill by ship's doctor & taken on
board LT with wife & child for Tahiti.

En. 2. 2 is Newbury's defensor (written in ink by Heer)

No. should be 359, 25. 8. 64

Enclosure

Ex. 2. 2 in Gar to Mints, 2379,
21864

Deposition

Today 1st Sept-1864 at 8 am

We were carried in a hut a few steps from the waist ledge to question George Newbery aged 33 born in Long Is. N.Y. - seaman - living in oil - 2 years out for

Smith, Randell to Fairclough to trade in coconut oil, Newbery was too ill to attend inquiry (trial) N. arrived in Papeete on board LT. the last 9th August - asked

to give information of anything he knew about Ellen Fly - Chilian Brig. Sailing for Peru, on which he embarked as interpreter to help with kidnapping of Polynesians.

G.N. The C-Beg ^{Cebu} ~~was~~ consisted of 1109 12 men - Cap Muller

S.C. John # Holm - 9-3-63 embarked as interpreter - Kingsmill Corp - \$30 per month. vessel stayed about 2 months in Gilberts

John
Helm

anchored ^{once} ~~to~~ ^{at the bank} ~~in~~ Seydenham
for only 2 or 3 hours.

Natives curious & hopeful of stealing
came on board. Habit with whaling
ships. Several of the 160 natives
men - women & children stayed on
board stayed voluntarily.
Without violence by Capt, attracted
by falacious promises

The rest kept by force. He
set the canoes adrift ^{far enough away} some way from
shore so they could not swim ashore.
The usual way of capturing natives -
no permission asked from authorities

On way to Peen asked to
translate. Have contracts signed
which ^{of course help} contract model of produce

Ship could not take more than 160
& very crowded

at Drummond 15 women & 2 men
only inhabitants were picked up
in this manner.

Food 2 measures of cooked rice
salt fish - measures as big as
a little cup of tea + given 1 at each
meal. For form sufficient. The
unfortunate natives had to steal
whatever they find. Those caught
whipped vigorously.

One of the biggest pleasures of capt
was to women covered with tar
hair pulled + bitten by seaman.

Capt. had promised clothing +
tobacco but received none.

Saw 2 or 3 ships which must
have kidnapped in some way
one of them in 7 or 8 at Rotuma

I got this fact from seaman
As for me I never went ashore
+ the 15 or 16 men who embarked
with me ~~embarked~~ did so on
own will. They + me ^{believed} thought they
were going to work on farms

We are St Jose Seprock.
authorities were opposed to them
going ashore so we had to leave

off. of Peruvian Navy put on board
to look after repatriation - Bad
weather joined to lack of food
made them want to disembark
at first port, and when we
arrived at Peruquín so this prop made
to them & they accepted - me too.
All ^{end of} Jan last natives looking than
like skeletons - Dep. St Jose we
went to Payta there ~~was~~ no water
said to Tumbay - I was sick &
went ashore to be nursed. Expenses
why I have passport for America land.

Gonzalez 2nd Lieut Peruvian Navy
During trip ~~badly~~ trip did not
treat natives badly but food was
lacking & no med. other normal.
with going a return

George C. Newbury

168 3.3.63

In the isolation and distance in which we are for the rest of the world and the time
of Anama I think that in the face of similar attacks, we had as
little, the last news of us, and seeing the loss of the
business of our administration during these extraordinary instances (and delays) is
to give the public full knowledge of the facts as far as
Here following is the Message.

Our office faces an solitary affair in the Pacific Islands.

Paul Polignac has found to be the greatest obstacle created by the pirates in
the development of their schemes.

Letter to Lord Dufferin who speaks of India and also of Paul & Spirit will
be de Lenclos to help with investigations.

Gov. to de Lenclos, 4.3.63.

Seeing this native, called Haki by name on the Oroai

is the Chief of the Pacific Mail Division.

131 - 27.3.63

Distress as you see that I have read no replies to my letters
to the Chef d'affaires here & Admiral Comding - in Chief the
Prince and Prince for the Kingdom of Djakarta.

Plea for more transportation

'De substitution sur avis à reforme avec en graine, à un
transport à volée.'

142 - 30.3.63

Let's capture & capture of SM go & hope they will spread
an offensive of the party in Tahiti etc they get to Pen

To de Lecomps 3.5.63 re Grazing
